
   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 

REGULAR MEETING 

February 10, 2016 

9:00 a.m. 

 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Accept comments from the public. 

 

3. Approve minutes from the November 4, 2015 Board meeting. 

 

4.     Routine items for February 10, 2016. 

 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 

b. Approve service and disability allowances. 

c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 

d. Approve death benefits. 

e. Accept Asset Allocation Report 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

5. The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to consider 

recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following 

disability retirement applications: 

 

    Member Type Sought  Recommendation 

a. Susan Ekberg Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 

 
6. The Board will continue in closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to evaluate 

the performance of the following public employee: 

Title: Chief Executive Officer  

 

7.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 

a. Board of Retirement v. Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District, et al., Contra 

County Superior Court, Case No.: N15-1906. 

 

b. Nowicki v. CCCERA, Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. N15-1696. 

 

 

 



   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 

persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 

contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 

 

OPEN SESSION 

 

8. Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2016-2 assessing Rodeo-

Hercules Fire District costs incurred because of the District’s failure to forward 

contributions on a timely basis. 

 

9. Consider and take possible action on employer contribution rates effective July 1, 

2016 for Central Contra Costa Sanitary District.  

  

10. Consider and take possible action to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of 

April 1, 2016. 

 

11. Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2016-1 providing for salary and 

benefits for unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective February 1, 2016. 

 

12. Consider and take possible action to adopt the pay schedules for all CCCERA 

classifications effective February 1, 2016. 

 

13. Report from staff on semi-annual rebalancing. 

 

14. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

 

a. Public Sector 401, 403 and 457 Plans, IFEBP, February 17-18, 2016, San Diego, 

CA. 

b. 18th Annual Client Conference, Klausner, Kaufman, Jensen & Levinson, March 

6-9, 2016, Fort Lauderdale, FL. (Note: Conflict with meeting) 

c. Public Funds Roundtable, Institutional Investor, April 27-29, 2016, Los Angeles, 

CA. (Note: Conflict with meeting) 

 

15. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report 

b. Outside Professionals’ Report  

c. Trustees’ comments 

 

 

 



 

 

 
MINUTES 

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

FIRST MONTHLY BOARD MEETING 

November 4, 2015 

9:00 a.m. 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

 

 

Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie 

Kroll, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 

 

Absent: Jerry Telles 

 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief 

Investment Officer; Karen Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz, 

Retirement Compliance Officer; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Benefits Manager; Alexis Cox, 

Retirement Benefits Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager 

 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Susan Hastings  Laughlin, Falbo, Levy & Moresi LLP 

 

Board members Gordon and Rodrigues attended remotely from The Lodge at Torrey Pines in La Jolla, CA. 

 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Andersen led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

2. Accept comments from the public 

Jack Funk, retired, spoke on Item 9. He stated four physician retirees were notified that their 

pensions were cut so they sent letters to the Retirement Board and have not received a response.  He 

feels the cut in their pensions was incorrect. 

Allen was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

Dr. David Hearst, retiree working for Health Services, noted he was speaking on behalf of three 

other physicians and that they are requesting a hearing to discuss whether panel management pay 

was pensionable at the time of their retirement. He read a letter to the Board written by him, Dr. 

Krista Farey, Dr. Priscilla Hinman, and Dr. Dana Slauson, regarding panel management pay. He 

answered questions from the Board regarding the definition of panel management pay. 

Levy stated this is the public comment section of the meeting and the item of whether Panel 

Management Pay is pensionable is not on the Agenda.  She advised that it is the CCCERA Board of 

Retirement’s role to determine whether or not pay items are pensionable.  She suggested the Board 

move to Item 9 noting a discussion on Panel Management Pay being pensionable would have to be 

on a future agenda in order to be considered by the Board.  



Page 2 

November 4, 2015 

 

 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 9. 

9. Consider and take possible action regarding the collection of pension overpayments from 

Contra Costa County due to its erroneous reporting of panel management pay as pensionable 

compensation 

The Board felt there may need to be more information on this item before making a decision. The 

Board requested copies of the correspondence that has been sent out. 

It was M/S/C to continue this item and direct staff to come back with further analysis and 

background on the difference facets of this item, after which the Board may consider whether to 

agendize the item of whether panel management pay received by the affected retirees was 

pensionable.  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

There was a discussion on issuing a stay on the reduction of retiree payments until a decision is 

made. 

It was M/S that beginning in December and going forward, until a formal determination is made by 

this Board, the reduction that was effective September 1, 2015 be reinstated for the four retirees, 

subject to a determination. If the determination is made that it is in fact an overpayment then any 

future overpayments would be the responsibility of the retirees to repay CCCERA, not the employer. 

(Yes: Hast and Kroll. No: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts). 

Motion Failed. 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 3. 

3. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the September 23, September 29, and September 30, 2015 

meetings. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

4. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the November 4, 2015 meeting with the exception of 

Lillian Holbrook, Item 4.D. Deaths, noting she was not a Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

employee. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts)   

It was M/S/C to add an emergency closed session item to discuss initiating litigation pursuant to 

Govt. Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) because there is a need for the Board to take immediate action and 

the need for action came to the attention of CCCERA subsequent to the agenda being posted.  Levy 

discussed the immediate need for action noting that CCCERA was just informed that the Rodeo-

Hercules Fire Protection District announced a settlement and the Chief had recently announced they 

were not making full contributions. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, 

Smithey and Watts) 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957, 54956.9(d)(2), 54956.9(d)(1) 

and 54956.9(d)(4). 

 

The Board moved into open session. 

 

5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 

benefits: 



Page 3 

November 4, 2015 

 

 

a. Kristine Bouchard – Non-service Connected  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts)  

b. Arturo Cruz – Non-service Connected  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

c. Matthew Parkinen – Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts). Note: Pigeon recused himself and was not present during this 

discussion. 

d. Peter Wells – Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon, 

Smithey and Watts).  Note: Pigeon voted for Rodrigues because he is a firefighter. 

 

6. It was M/S/C to accept the Administrative Law Judge’s recommendation and deny the service 

connected disability retirement for James Lee. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, 

Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

7. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2). 

8. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 

8a. In open session, it was M/S/C to hold a closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) 

because there is a need for the Board to take immediate action in light of the settlement reportedly 

reached between the Rodeo Hercules Fire District and taxpayer Pearson, as the District has defaulted 

on making its full UAAL payments to CCCERA as required by law.  The Board determined that this 

matter is urgent and the Pearson settlement announcement came to the attention of CCCERA after the 

posting of the agenda.  The Board is authorized under the Brown Act, Government Code Section 

54954.2(b)(2), to discuss this matter although it was not on the agenda.  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 

Gordon, Hast, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Gov’t Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) to confer with 

legal counsel regarding whether to initiate litigation (one case).   

The Board moved into open session. 

Chairperson Phillips noted that there was no reportable action on the Board’s conference with legal 

counsel regarding whether to initiate litigation pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(4). 

Gordon and Rodrigues were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

10. Educational Presentation on Brown Act Fundamentals 

Levy gave a presentation on the Brown Act noting the public has a right to know in advance what the 

Board will be discussing and voting on. 

11. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Strohl reported the Audit Committee meeting will be rescheduled.  She reported the deceased 

employee listed on the Routine Items as a Central Contra Costa Sanitary District is actually an 

alternate payee and is part of Central Contra Costa Sanitary District. The telephone service was 

successfully changed from the County and the data will be moved over next month. Open 

enrollment for January 2016 benefits for all staff was held last week, CCCERA’s website was 

launched last week. 

 

Price reported Ocean Avenue will be presenting their Fund III at the next meeting and Verus will 

be presenting the quarterly investment report at the next meeting.  He reported staff and Verus are 



Page 4 

November 4, 2015 

 

 

working on fine tuning the investment strategies and final asset allocation for the December 2, 

2015 meeting. 

 

Dutkiewicz reported he received requests from the County to review 110 pay classes with the 

majority being from Health Services.  He stated this is compliance and ethics week and he is 

promoting it throughout the office. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 

None 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 

Pigeon reported he attended the NCPERS Conference with Rodrigues and Smithey and that he 

wasn’t very impressed. 

 

Smithey noted he felt the same. 

 

 

 

 

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Pigeon, 

Smithey and Watts) 

 

 

 

 

             

John Phillips, Chairman     Scott Gordon, Secretary 

 

 





















 
 

MEMORANDUM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date:  February 10, 2016 

To:  Board of Retirement 

   

From:  Karen Levy, General Counsel 

 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Adopt Resolution 2016-2 Assessing Rodeo-

Hercules Fire District Costs Incurred Because of the District’s Failure to Forward 

Contributions on a Timely Basis 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   

I. Background 
 

Rodeo-Hercules Fire District (“District”) is a participating employer in CCCERA.  In July of 

2015, the District ceased paying the full amount of its monthly pension obligations to CCCERA.  

In October of 2015, CCCERA demanded full payment (including interest) from the District.  On 

November 4 and November 9, 2015, having not received payment nor any assurance thereof 

from the District, CCCERA filed legal actions seeking payment from the District of amounts 

owed, in excess of $360,000, together with accruing interest.  On February 2, 2016, CCCERA 

dismissed the proceeding without prejudice, after confirming that all amounts due (including 

interest) were in fact finally paid by the District.   

 

II. Applicable Law 
 

The CCCERA Board has plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the administration of 

the CCCERA system.  (California Constitution, Article XVI, Sec. 17.)  As a participating 

employer in CCCERA, the District must make employer contributions to CCCERA to fund the 

retirement and other benefits that the District promised to its employees and their beneficiaries 

upon their retirement, death or disability.  These obligations are codified in the County 

Employees Retirement Law of 1937 ("CERL"), Government Code Sections 31453, 31454, 

31581, 31582, 31584, 31585 and 31586.   

 

CERL Section 31580.1 authorizes the CCCERA Board to “assess a district a reasonable amount 

to cover costs incurred because of the district’s failure to submit reports and forward 

contributions on a timely basis.”  The costs incurred by CCCERA because of the District’s failure 

to forward full and timely contributions is a cost of administration recoverable from the District 

pursuant to Section 31580.1.   

 

 

 



 

CCCERA Board of Retirement 

February 10, 2015 

Page 2 
 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

IV. Recommendation 
 

Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2016-2 assessing Rodeo-Hercules Fire 

District the costs incurred because of the District’s failure to forward contributions on a timely 

basis, in the amount of $45,279.11.  The amount of the Assessment shall be due and payable to 

CCCERA on or before July 1, 2016, after which any unpaid amount of the Assessment shall be 

deemed to be in default and shall bear interest thereafter at CCCERA’s applicable annual 

assumed rate of return. 



  

BOR Reso. No. 2016-2 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

ASSESSING RODEO-HERCULES FIRE DISTRICT COSTS INCURRED BECAUSE OF 

THE DISTRICT’S FAILURE TO FORWARD CONTRIBUTIONS ON A TIMELY BASIS 

 

WHEREAS, Article XVI, §17 of the Constitution of the State of California vests the Board of 

Retirement (Board) with “plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for … administration of 

the system … [and] sole and exclusive responsibility to administer the system in a manner that will 

assure prompt delivery of benefits and related services to the participants and their beneficiaries”; 

and 

WHEREAS, each year, the CCCERA Board, upon the recommendations of its enrolled actuary, 

establishes the necessary contributions and appropriations due from participating employers in 

CCCERA in the forthcoming fiscal year and advises them of the amounts they need to pay into the 

retirement system; and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL sec. 31454(b)(1), the “governing body of a district within the 

county system that is not governed by the board of supervisors shall, not later than 90 days after 

the beginning of the immediately succeeding fiscal year, adjust the rates of contributions of the 

district members and in the district’s appropriations in accordance with the recommendations of 

the board [of retirement], but shall not fix them in amounts that reduce the individual benefits 

provided in this chapter”; and   

WHEREAS, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District (“District”) has been a participating employer in 

CCCERA since July of 1957.  As a participating employer in CCCERA, the District has a non-

discretionary, mandatory obligation to make employer contributions to CCCERA to fund the 

retirement and other benefits that the District promised to its employees and their beneficiaries 

upon their retirement, death or disability.  These obligations are codified in CERL, secs. 31453, 

31454, 31581, 31582, 31584, 31585 and 31586; and 

WHEREAS, in or about July of 2015, District ceased paying the full amount of its monthly 

pension obligations to CCCERA.  The District continued to fail to make full and timely payments 

to CCCERA until December of 2015; and 

WHEREAS, on or about October 23, 2015, CCCERA demanded full payment of its statutory 

contribution obligations to CCCERA (including interest) from the District.  On November 4 and 

November 9, 2015, having not received payment nor any assurance thereof from the District, 

CCCERA filed legal actions seeking payment from the District; and   

WHEREAS, at the time of filing of the legal actions seeking payment from the District, the 

District’s default exceeded $360,000, together with accruing interest; and   

WHEREAS, on November 11, 2015, the District’s Board of Directors took formal action at the 

District’s public meeting to direct its staff to pay CCCERA all amounts owed and to continue to 

make full payments to CCCERA; and 

WHEREAS, on or about February 2, 2016, CCCERA filed a dismissal without prejudice of its 

pending legal action against the District; and  



BOR Reso. No. 2016-2 

 - 2 -  

WHEREAS, the costs incurred by CCCERA because of the District’s failure to forward full and 

timely contributions include attorney’s fees and costs in the amount of $45,279.11; and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to CERL sec. 31580.1, the CCCERA Board “may include each year in the 

contribution required of a district a reasonable amount, which may differ from district to district, to 

cover the costs of administering its retirement system as such costs affect the active and retired 

employees of that district. The board may also assess a district a reasonable amount to cover costs 

incurred because of the district’s failure to submit reports and forward contributions on a timely 

basis”; and 

WHEREAS, the CCCERA Board has determined that the costs incurred by CCCERA because of 

the District’s failure to forward full and timely contributions is a cost of administration recoverable 

from the District pursuant to CERL sec. 31580.1.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Retirement hereby assesses the 

District the amount of $45,279.11 (“Assessment.”).  The Board hereby authorizes the CCCERA 

Administrator/CEO to take or authorize such action as is necessary and proper to recover the 

Assessment from the District.  The amount of the Assessment shall be due and payable to 

CCCERA on or before July 1, 2016, after which any unpaid amount of the Assessment shall be 

deemed to be in default and shall bear interest thereafter at CCCERA’s applicable annual assumed 

rate of return.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that failure by the District to pay the Assessment and any accrued 

interest thereon in a timely manner shall result in a demand by CCCERA on the Auditor-

Controller of Contra Costa County to make such payment out of any available assets of the District 

held by the Auditor-Controller, pursuant to CERL secs. 31584 and 31585. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE BOARD OF 

RETIREMENT OF THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION THIS _____ DAY OF ___, 2016. 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:   

 

____________________________________________ 

John Phillips 

Chairperson of the Board of Retirement 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Scott Gordon 

Secretary of the Board of Retirement 



 
 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747    www.cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: February 10, 2016 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action on Employer Contribution Rates Effective July 1, 
2016 for Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
 
On December 29, 2015, Central Costa Contra Sanitary District made a $2.5 million prepayment 
towards the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL).  This prepayment reduces the 
required contribution rate.  Consistent with past practice, the District’s contribution rate will be 
reduced effective July 1, 2016 (the July 1 following receipt of the prepayment). 
 
Since the contribution rates scheduled to go into effect July 1, 2016 were determined in the 
December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation report, the contribution rates are being adjusted in that 
report.  The $2.5 million prepayment is discounted to December 31, 2014 and amortized over 18 
years as a level percent of pay based on the assumptions adopted by the Board for that report. 
 
The attached letter from Segal Consulting illustrates the new contribution rates, effective July 1, 
2016, taking into account the prepayment. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Consider and take possible action on employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2016 for 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District. 

 









 
 

MEMORANDUM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

Date:  February 10, 2016 

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Adopt A Cost-of-Living Increase for 

Retirees as of April 1, 2016.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

In accordance with Government Code §§31870, 31870.1 and 31870.3, the Board must determine 

the annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) to be effective April 1, 2016.  

Determination of COLA 

Based on the statutes noted above, the increase or decrease of the retiree allowances must 

“approximate to the nearest one-half of 1 percent, the percentage of annual increase or decrease 

in the cost of living as of January 1st of each year as shown by the then current Bureau of Labor 

Statistics Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the area in which the county seat is 

situated.” The only difference in the three COLA statutes that apply to CCCERA members is that 

the annual maximum adjustment is either 2%, 3%, or 4% depending on which section is 

applicable. 

The consumer price index values used by CCCERA are the December values from the San 

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, California table. The increase in the index from December 2014 to 

December 2015 was 3.18%. In accordance with the statute this is rounded to 3.0%. 

When this value is greater than the annual allowable maximum increase, the excess above the 

allowance increase is accumulated or “banked”. When the value is less than the annual allowable 

maximum increase, retirees with sufficient bank will receive the maximum allowable increase 

and have their banks reduces accordingly. 

The attached Segal letter shows the determination of the consumer price index increase and the 

annual adjustment retirees will receive depending on Tier and bank. The letter also shows the 

adjustments to the banks. 

Recommendation 

Consider and take possible action to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of  

April 1, 2016. 



 

100 Montgomery Street  Suite 500  San Francisco, CA 94104-4308 
T 415.263.8260  www.segalco.com 

 
 
John W. Monroe, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Vice President & Actuary 
jmonroe@segalco.com 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting. Member of The Segal Group. Offices throughout the United States and Canada 
 

January 29, 2016 
 
Ms. Gail Strohl 
Chief Executive Officer  
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, CA 94520 
 
Re: Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA) as of April 1, 2016 
 

Dear Gail: 

We have determined the cost-of-living adjustments for the Association in accordance with 
Sections 31870.1, 31870.3 and 31870, as provided in the enclosed exhibits.   

The cost-of-living factor to be used by the Association on April 1, 2016 is determined by 
comparing the December CPI for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Area (with 1982-84 as 
the base period) in each of the past two years. The ratio of the past two December indices, 
260.289 in 2015 and 252.273 in 2014, is 1.0318. The County Law sections cited above indicate 
that the resulting percentage change of 3.18% should be rounded to the nearest one-half 
percent, which is 3.0%.  

Please note the above cost-of-living adjustments calculated using established procedures for 
CCCERA may result in adjustments different from those calculated using alternative 
procedures by other systems. 

The actual cost-of-living adjustment is dependent on tier. The CPI adjustment to be applied on 
April 1, 2016 is provided in Column (4) of the enclosed exhibits. The COLA bank on  
April 1, 2016 is provided in Column (5). 

Pease give us a call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 
John Monroe 
 
TJH/bqb 
Enclosures              5412257v3/05337.001 



 

5412257v3/05337.001 1 SEGAL CONSULTING  

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

April 1, 2015 April 1, 2016
Accumulated CPI CPI CPI Accumulated
Carry-over Change* Rounded** Used*** Carry-over****

Tier 1, Tier 3 (service retirement only), Tier 4 (3% COLA), Tier 5 (3%/4% COLA and service retirement only), Safety Tier A 
and Safety Tier D
Section 31870.1
Maximum Annual COLA 3.0%

9.000% 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 9.000%
04/01/1982 to 03/31/1983 2.527% 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 2.527%
04/01/1983 to 03/31/2015 0.000% 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 0.000%
04/01/2015 to 03/31/2016 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 0.000%

*         Based on ratio of December 2015 CPI to December 2014 CPI for the San Francisco - Oakland - San Jose Area.
**        Based on CPI change rounded to nearest one-half percent.
***      These are the cost-of-living adjustment factors to be applied on April 1, 2016.
****     These are the carry-over of the cost-of-living adjustments that have not been used on April 1, 2016.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Cost-Of-Living Adjustment

As of April 1, 2016

On or Before 3/31/1982

Retirement Date



 

5412257v3/05337.001 2 SEGAL CONSULTING  

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

April 1, 2015 April 1, 2016
Accumulated CPI CPI CPI Accumulated
Carry-over Change* Rounded** Used*** Carry-over****

Tier 2, Tier 3 (disability retirement only) and Tier 5 (3%/4% COLA and disability retirement only)
Section 31870.3
Maximum Annual COLA 4.0%

04/01/1984 to 03/31/2015 0.0% 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0%
04/01/2015 to 03/31/2016 3.18% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0%

*         Based on ratio of December 2015 CPI to December 2014 CPI for the San Francisco - Oakland - San Jose Area.
**        Based on CPI change rounded to nearest one-half percent.
***      These are the cost-of-living adjustment factors to be applied on April 1, 2016.
****     These are the carry-over of the cost-of-living adjustments that have not been used on April 1, 2016.

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Cost-Of-Living Adjustment

As of April 1, 2016

Retirement Date

 



 

5412257v3/05337.001 3 SEGAL CONSULTING  

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

April 1, 2015 April 1, 2016
Accumulated CPI CPI CPI Accumulated
Carry-over Change* Rounded** Used*** Carry-over****

Tier 4 (2% COLA), Tier 5 (2% COLA), Safety Tier C and Safety Tier E
Section 31870
Maximum Annual COLA 2.0%

04/01/2007 to 03/31/2012 2.0% 3.18% 3.0% 2.0% 3.0%
04/01/2012 to 03/31/2014 1.0% 3.18% 3.0% 2.0% 2.0%
04/01/2014 to 03/31/2015 0.5% 3.18% 3.0% 2.0% 1.5%
04/01/2015 to 03/31/2016 3.18% 3.0% 2.0% 1.0%

*         Based on ratio of December 2015 CPI to December 2014 CPI for the San Francisco - Oakland - San Jose Area.
**        Based on CPI change rounded to nearest one-half percent.
***      These are the cost-of-living adjustment factors to be applied on April 1, 2016.
****     These are the carry-over of the cost-of-living adjustments that have not been used on April 1, 2016.

Retirement Date

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Cost-Of-Living Adjustment

As of April 1, 2016

 
 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date:  February 10, 2016    

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Christina Dunn, Retirement Admin/HR Manager 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution 2016-1 providing for salary and benefits for 
unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective February 1, 2016 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
 
On January 27, 2016 the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (“CCCERA”) 
Board of Retirement adopted salary ranges for unrepresented employees effective February 1, 
2016 and discontinued the differential for the Chartered Financial Analyst certificate.  
 
The previously adopted resolution for salary and benefits for unrepresented employees of 
CCCERA did not provide information on short term disability benefits. The benefits are 
discussed in the CCCERA Employee Benefits Guide, in an effort to streamline information we 
have updated the unrepresented employees resolution to provide reference to this benefit. 
 
The attached resolution outlines the changes adopted by the Board of Retirement on January 27, 
2016 and provides clarification language on the short term disability benefit provided to 
unrepresented employees of CCCERA. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2016-1 providing for salary and 
benefits for unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective February 1, 2016. 

2. Consider and take possible action to adopt the revised pay schedules for all CCCERA 
classifications effective February 1, 2016. 

 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

Date:  February 3, 2016    

To:  CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From:  Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Subject: Semi-Annual Rebalancing

 

Overview 

The semi-annual rebalancing of CCCERA accounts took place at the beginning of February 2016.  

While CCCERA has adopted a new asset allocation process, we do not yet have an 

implementation plan.  As such, the current target manager allocations were used for this 

rebalancing, but we were cognizant of where there were likely to be material changes post-

implementation (most notably on the global fixed income and high yield portfolios).  We also 

updated all balances through mid-January prior to formulating our rebalancing plan in order to 

reflect the downdraft of the equity markets in our starting balances. 

 

The following transactions were used to rebalance CCCERA’s assets to the current target 

weights:   

 

Funds were withdrawn from the following investment managers: 

PIMCO Total Return     $65  Million 

Goldman Sachs Core Plus     $14  Million 

Lord Abbett      $12  Million 

Lazard Asset Management    $15  Million 

Allianz Global Investors    $15  Million 

Adelante      $24  Million 

INVESCO International REIT    $20  Million 

AFL-CIO      $15  Million 

 Total Withdrawals     $180  Million  

   

  



Proceeds were invested with the following investment managers: 

Robeco      $20  Million 

Ceredex      $20  Million 

Emerald      $30  Million 

PIMCO Stocks Plus     $13  Million 

First Eagle      $7    Million 

Pyrford      $21  Million 

William Blair      $34  Million 

Artisan       $15  Million 

Cash       $20  Million 

Total Investment of Proceeds   $180 Million 

 

Fixed income markets fared better than equity markets in the second half of 2015 as well as the 

initial weeks of 2016, which led to withdrawals from all public fixed income mandates, with the 

proceeds being invested in public equities. Withdrawals from the REIT managers were made to 

bring the total real estate allocation back to target.  Details of the rebalancing are provided in 

the table on the following page. 



 

 
 

% of Total % of Total

Adjusted 1/20/2016 Over/Under Market Value After

Target  Market Value % of Dec Target* Rebalance After Rebalance Rebalance

  Robeco 4.3% 270,234,000        3.9% (24,790,763)       20,000,000       290,234,000        4.2% 

  Jackson Square Partners (fka Delaware) 4.3% 290,872,000        4.2% (4,152,763)         290,872,000        4.2% 

  Emerald Advisors 3.0% 169,407,000        2.5% (36,424,230)       30,000,000       199,407,000        2.9% 

  Intech (Core) 4.1% 274,934,000        4.0% (6,368,681)         274,934,000        4.0% 

  PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute Return 2.8% 207,530,000        3.0% 15,420,852        13,000,000       220,530,000        3.2% 

  Ceredex 3.0% 184,351,000        2.7% (21,480,230)       20,000,000       204,351,000        3.0% 

Total Domestic Equity 21.5% 1,397,328,000     20.4% (77,795,815)       83,000,000       1,480,328,000     21.6% 

  Pyrford (BMO) 5.3% 342,175,000        5.0% (21,460,173)       21,000,000       363,175,000        5.3% 

  William Blair 5.3% 329,472,000 4.8% (34,163,173)       34,000,000       363,472,000 5.3% 

Total International Equity 10.6% 671,647,000        9.8% (55,623,346)       55,000,000       726,647,000        10.6% 

  JPMorgan Global Opportunities 4.0% 270,244,000        3.9% (4,197,640)         270,244,000        3.9% 

  First Eagle 4.0% 267,634,000        3.9% (6,807,640)         7,000,000         274,634,000        4.0% 

  Artisan Global Opportunities 4.0% 259,766,000        3.8% (14,675,640)       15,000,000       274,766,000        4.0% 

  Intech (Global Low Volatility) 0.3% 21,490,000          0.3% 906,877             21,490,000          0.3% 

Total Global Equity 12.3% 819,134,000        11.9% (24,774,043)       22,000,000       841,134,000        12.3% 

Total Equity 44.4% 2,888,109,000  42.1% (158,193,204)  160,000,000   3,048,109,000  44.4% 

  AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust 3.3% 241,296,000        3.5% 14,881,647        (15,000,000)      226,296,000        3.3% 

  PIMCO Total Return 5.0% 408,188,000        5.9% 65,135,950        (65,000,000)      343,188,000        5.0% 

  GSAM "Park" Portfolio 0.0% 4,000                   0.0% 4,000                 4,000                   0.0% 

  Goldman Sachs Asset Management 4.7% 336,600,000        4.9% 14,131,073        (14,000,000)      322,600,000        4.7% 

  Lord Abbett 4.7% 334,032,000        4.9% 11,563,073        (12,000,000)      322,032,000        4.7% 

  Torchlight Debt Opportunity Funds 1.8% 122,828,000        1.8% (670,738)            122,828,000        1.8% 

Total Domestic Fixed Income 19.5% 1,442,948,000     21.0% 105,045,005      (106,000,000)    1,336,948,000     19.5% 

  Lazard Asset Management 4.0% 289,098,000        4.2% 14,656,360        (15,000,000)      274,098,000        4.0% 

Total Global Fixed Income 23.5% 1,732,046,000  25.2% 119,701,365   (121,000,000)  1,611,046,000   23.5% 

  Allianz 5.0% 320,361,000        4.7% (22,691,050)       (15,000,000)      305,361,000        4.5% 

Total High Yield Fixed Income 5.0% 320,361,000     4.7% (22,691,050)     (15,000,000)    305,361,000      4.5% 

  Wellington Real Total Return 0.8% 189,910,000        2.8% 138,452,193      189,910,000        2.8% 

  PIMCO All Asset 1.8% 114,901,000        1.7% (5,167,218)         114,901,000        1.7% 

  Private Real Asset 2.5% 54,436,000          0.8% (117,090,025)     54,436,000          0.8% 

Total Real Asset 5.0% 359,247,000     5.2% 16,194,950      -                   359,247,000      5.2% 

Total Real Estate 12.5% 902,067,000     13.1% 44,436,875      (44,000,000)    858,067,000      12.5% 

Total Alternative Investments 8.0% 595,215,000      8.7% 46,331,720     595,215,000      8.7% 

  County Treasurer 0.0% -                      0.0% * -                    -                       0.0% 

  State Street Bank 1.0% 26,000,000          0.4% (42,610,410)       20,000,000       46,000,000          0.7% 

Total Cash & Equivalents 1.0% 26,000,000       0.4% (42,610,410)    20,000,000     46,000,000        0.7% 

  Oaktree'09 and AGECO 0.6% 37,996,000          0.6% (3,170,246)         37,996,000          0.6% 

Total Market Opportunities 0.6% 37,996,000       0.6% (3,170,246)       -                   37,996,000        0.6% 

TOTAL ASSETS 100.0% 6,861,041,000  100% -                    -                   6,861,041,000   100.0% 




































	agenda 2.10.16
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 8
	2015-02-10 Memo Re Resolution Assessing Rodeo Hercules Litigation Expenses
	2016-02-10 Resolution Assessing Rodeo Hercules Costs of Litigation (002)

	Item 9
	Central San Pmt
	LTR, 05337 CCCERA Central Sanitary 2015 UAAL Prepayment Employer Rates, ...

	Item 10
	COLA-2016
	LTR 05337-013 CCCERA 4_1_2016 COLA Letter Client

	Item 11 and 12
	Memo to Board 2-10-16 Resolution unrep salary and STD
	2016-1 Unrepresented Employees Resolution
	Attachment A to Unrepresented Resolution 2-1-16 Reso 2016-1
	Attachment B to Unrepresented Resolution eff. 1-1-16


	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14

